No. 89623-2
(COA No. 43899-2-II)

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

MARK OLLA, an individual,

Appellant,

v.

ROBERT H. WAGNER, as an individual and as Trustee of THE
ROBERT H. WAGNER MONEY PURCHASE PENSION PLAN
(aka "THE ROBERT H.W WAGNER PENSION PLAN") and DOES 3
through 50, Inclusive,

Respondents

FILED
DEC - 9 2013

PETITION FOR REVIEW

CLERK OF THE SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON

Mark Olla, Petitioner Appellant Plaintiff Pro Se
P.O. Box 1213
Newport, Oregon 97365
Tel.: (541) 270 -1422
E-mail: markolla@aol.com

Petitioner Appellant Plaintiff Pro Se

INTRODUCTION

IDENTITY OF PETITIONER

The Petitioner is MARK OLLA (“OLLA”), whom, as an individual, was the Plaintiff in the proceedings before the Kitsap County Superior Court (“trial court”) and Appellant for the subsequent subject appeal to the Court of Appeals, Division II, below. OLLA now, hereby, moves this Supreme Court pursuant to RAP 13.4 (b).

COURT OF APPEALS DECISION BELOW

OLLA seeks review, pursuant to RAP 13.4 (b) of the October 29, 2013 non-published Decision² (“Decision”), specifically *Olla v. Wagner Et Al.*, No. 43899-2-II, entered below at the Washington

² A true and correct copy of the subject Decision/Order designated as Order Denying Motion on the Merits, as was entered on October 29, 2013 at the COA2, is attached hereto as Appendix A.

State Court of Appeals, Division II ("COA2") on October 29, 2013.

The Decision was in denial of his RAP 17.7 Motion to Modify the COA2 Court Commissioner Eric B. Schmidt's August 29, 2013 Ruling³ ("Commissioner's Ruling") Granting the Motion on the Merits to Affirm ("MOTMTA") as was filed by Respondents, ROBERT H. WAGNER, as an individual and as Trustee of THE ROBERT H. WAGNER MONEY PURCHASE PENSION PLAN (aka "THE ROBERT H. WAGNER PENSION PLAN") and DOES 3 through 50, Inclusive ("WAGNER") on May 16, 2013 ("MTM"). In conformance with RAP 13.4 (c) (9), a copy of both the COA2 Decision and the Commissioner's Ruling are each attached hereto as Appendix A and B respectively.

ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

1. Whether the COA2's panel of judges' Decision to deny OLLA's MTM is erroneous and presents issues which meet the criteria for granting review thereof by the Washington State Supreme Court pursuant to RAP 13.4 (b) (1) and/or (b) (2) and/or (b) (3) and/or (b) (4) ?
2. Whether the COA2 Commissioner's determination that OLLA's Appeal was clearly without merit as according to the requisite standard required by RAP 18.14 (e) (1) for granting

³ A true and correct copy of the subject Commissioner's Ruling Granting Motion on the Merits, as was entered on August 29, 2013, is attached hereto as Appendix B.

such a Motion is erroneous and an incorrect basis upon which to base his Ruling granting WAGNER's MOTMTA and dismissing OLLA's Appeal?

3. Whether the COA2 Commissioner's Ruling correctly affirmed the trial court's denial of OLLA's CR 60 (b) (5) motion to vacate its January 15, 2010 Judgment or was erroneously made by the Commissioner having incorrectly determined under RAP 18 (e) (1) (c) that the trial court did not abuse its judicial discretion in entertaining OLLA's action as filed and proceeding to enter such Judgment? Whether the January 15, 2010 Judgment, which OLLA's CR 60 (b) (5) motion sought for the trial court to vacate, was entered without subject matter jurisdiction and therefore constituted a manifest abuse of authority by the trial court, such judgment being clearly thus void?
4. Whether the determination of subject matter jurisdiction by the trial court as a basis for denying OLLA's CR 60 (b) (5) motion to vacate was erroneous as conflicting with
5. Washington State court precedents interpreting RCW 4.12.010 as in limitation on Washington State superior court subject matter jurisdiction, given that OLLA's action sought recovery of, imposition of a constructive trust on and damages for harm to real property located in the state of California and presented a justiciable controversy only as in regard to such real property?
6. Whether the Commissioner's Ruling, and therefore the COA2, were bound by this Court's decisions holding that any action seeking declaratory relief and/or any relief, present an actual controversy as established by legally justiciable claims, upon which such declaratory relief as sought may or may not be granted, in order for a Washington State trial court's subject matter jurisdiction to be properly invoked in regard to such claims?
7. Whether the Commissioner's Ruling's contention that "[t]he [trial] court plainly had subject matter jurisdiction over the enforceability of the settlement agreement" since "[t]he subject matter of the first trial was the enforceability of the settlement agreement" was a legally sufficient, let alone legally correct, basis on which to deem the trial court had not abused its authority by proceeding to adjudicate any substantive issue in the case?

8. Whether application of test *approved* by this Court *In re Marriage of Brown*⁴ for the purpose of evaluating the proper circumstances under which a final judgment may be vacated either alters or is in exception to the nondiscretionary duty of a trial court to vacate a void judgment as recognized in other cases subsequently decided by this Court?
9. Whether the Commissioner, before ruling to grant or deny WAGNER's MOTMTA, had a duty to conduct a de novo review as to whether the trial court's own determination of subject matter jurisdiction was erroneous?
10. Whether COA2 Commissioner's Ruling's analysis conflicts in any way with the rule that a Washington State trial court must first possess subject matter jurisdiction over an action, as determined from the Complaint in the action, before proceeding to engage any fact finding adjudication to resolve any substantive issue raised by such action?
11. Whether, in regard to its determination that the trial court possessed subject matter jurisdiction over the parties' Settlement Agreement, the COA2 Commissioner's Ruling granting WAGNER's MOTMTA satisfied the requirement under RAP 18.14 (g) that a decision granting a motion on the merits state supportive reasons in its decision regarding its determination?
12. Whether the issue of reasonableness of timing of OLLA's subject CR 60 (b) (5) collateral attack on the trial court's subject final judgment, and belatedly, had any bearing on the below courts' evaluation of grounds presented by OLLA's Appeal to reversal of the trial court's denial of such?

In conformance with RAP 13.4 (c) (9), a copy of the constitutional provisions, statutes, and court rules referenced in the above issue statement are attached hereto as Appendix C.

⁴ *In re Marriage of Brown*, 98 Wash. 2d 46, 50, 653 P.2d 602 (1982)

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

1. Statement of Facts

OLLA'S dispute concerns August 3, 2012 Judgment⁵ and Order entered below by the Kitsap County Superior Court ("the trial court") in re case no. 09 2 01654 4 [OLLA v. WAGNER ET AL.] following its July 20, 2012 Ruling⁶ in denial of his CR 60 (b) (5)⁷ motion to vacate⁸ its January 15, 2010 judgment and orders⁹ (judgment that a settlement agreement as executed by the parties on October 16, 2008 was in full resolution of their mutual obligations pursuant to the action's three subject mortgage installment loan agreements¹⁰ and as entered based upon January 15, 2010 Findings of Fact and Conclusions of

⁵ CP pages 2387-2388.

⁶ RP, pages 1-23, as transpired at the Kitsap County Superior Court on July 20, 2012 before the Hon. Judge Kevin D. Hull.

⁷ A true and correct copy of the court rule, CR 60 (b) (5), is attached hereto as Appendix C4.

⁸ CP, pages 1771-1798, OLLA's CR 60 (b) (5) motion to vacate as filed July 13, 2012.

⁹ CP, pages 1328-1330, and from which January 15, 2010 Judgment and Orders OLLA filed an appeal [No. 40367-6-II / OLLA v. WAGNER ET AL.] from such judgment at the COA2 on February 10, 2010 (CP, pages 1331-1338)

¹⁰ CP, pages 2-145, OLLA's Complaint at CP, 102, Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement; see also, CP, pages 2-145, OLLA's Complaint's Exhibits label C, H and M, and such Complaint's paragraphs 14, 15, 23 and 28.

Law findings that such Agreement to be legally enforceable)
as void for lack of subject matter jurisdiction over OLLA's action
as filed on June 25, 2009.

OLLA's motion to vacate argued that the RCW 4.12.010¹¹
provides limitations of on superior court subject matter jurisdiction
which indicate that the trial court was not the proper forum
to have exercised general jurisdiction over his action as filed on
June 25, 2009. OLLA's contention was that his action could have
only been properly heard in the superior court of the county in
which the action's only subject real property for which justiciable
claims were presented was located (in the state of California).

OLLA's Complaint¹² had sought judicial rescission of its
three subject installment loan agreements whereby WAGNER
loaned money to OLLA, against OLLA's equity¹³ in his

¹¹ A true and correct copy of such state statute is attached hereto in Appendix C as Appendix C2.

¹² CP, pages 2-145.

principal dwelling located at 6368 Sea Star Drive, Malibu, California 90265 [“the California real property”], to first purchase and then improve the house and real property located at 10305 NE Shore Drive, Indianola, Washington¹⁴ [“the Washington real property”], with an objective to “[r]escind the loan transactions transactions.....to terminate any security interest in Plaintiff’s MALIBU HOUSE property created under the transactions”¹⁵.

The Complaint also sought declaratory relief to such effect as well as for purpose of establishing grounds upon which to justify its other requested remedies including remedies for damages for harm to such California¹⁶ real property, wrongful occupation of such real property¹⁷, the imposition of a constructive trust¹⁸ on

¹³ CP, pages 1312-1327, January 15, 2010 Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law at pages thereof

¹⁴ CP, 1595-1599, January 15, 2010 Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law at CP pages 1595-1596, paragraphs 1 and 2.

¹⁵ CP, p.80, paragraphs 87 and 88, as pointed at page 9 of OLLA’s Opening Appellate Brief; see also, OLLA’s OAB, page 4, referencing CP, pgs. 1799-2250, supporting that his Complaint sought to affect the status of the California real property and not the Washington State real property already transferred under deed in lieu of foreclosure to WAGNER.

¹⁶ CP, pages 2-145, OLLA’s Complaint: for damages for wrongful occupation of such California real property at CP pages 60-63 at page 63 and also CP page 77 in the Complaint’s THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION.

such California real property, an injunction on ability to sell subject real property¹⁹ apart from seeking the return of and to possession of the same such California real property in addition to establishing a basis for the action's other requested remedies.

WAGNER opposed²⁰ by arguing that the COA2 had already in its September 13, 2011 Unpublished Opinion on OLLA's earlier and first Appeal in the case, determined that the trial had possessed subject matter jurisdiction over the action and that hence OLLA's collateral challenge was barred by res judicata.

¹⁷ CP, pages. 60-63 at page 63, OLLA'S Complaint's Second Cause of Action; see also CP page 77 in OLLA'S Complaint's Third Cause of Action; CP at page 80, OLLA'S Complaint's Fourth Cause of Action (for quiet title) which sought injunction restraining sale of properties and damages for such and also sought damages for wrongful occupation of real estate.

¹⁸ CP, page 77, OLLA'S Complaint's Second Cause of Action seeking imposition of a constructive trust over the subject California real property as the one subject property that had not been tendered to WAGNER as to qualify for tender according to the remedy sought for rescission of each subject loan; see also CP, page 80, OLLA'S Complaint's Third Cause of Action seeking also constructive trust

¹⁹ CP, 99, in OLLA'S Complaint's Twelfth Cause of Action (for Declaratory Relief) seeks an injunction and a temporary restraining order on the ability to sell the subject real estate on the basis of determination of the parties' rights in the properties based on their rights to be determined, as a matter of declaratory relief sought, as under the subject loans.

²⁰ CP, pages 2256-2269, WAGNER's Brief in Opposition to OLLA's CR 60 (b) (5) motion to vacate specifically at CP, page 2264, lines 3 through 25 (inclusive of footnotes 27 and 28).

2. Trial Court Decision Below

While the trial court did not agree that the COA2 had earlier determined the issue of the trial court's subject matter jurisdiction, on July 20, 2012, it nevertheless ruled²¹ to deny OLLA's CR 60 (b) (5) motion to vacate²² its January 15, 2010 judgment and orders, based upon determination²³ that it had possessed subject matter jurisdiction over OLLA's action by virtue of either exercise of in rem jurisdiction²⁴ over the subject Washington real property for which the Complaint's Fourth Cause of Action (for Quiet Title) included, in addition to the subject California real property, or through superior court of general jurisdiction exercise of subject matter jurisdiction over transitory causes of action for contractual rescission²⁵. On July 30, 2012 the trial court also denied²⁶ OLLA's

²¹ Appendix B

²² CP, pages 1771-1798, CR 60 (b) (5) motion to vacate; see also, CP, pages 1799-2250, Exhibits in support of OLLA's CR 60 (b) (5) motion to vacate; see also, CP, pages 1759-1770, Affidavit of Mark Olla in support of his CR 60 (b) (5) motion to vacate; see also, CP, pages 1617-1758, OLLA's Request for Judicial Notice pursuant to ER 201 in support of his CR 60 (b) (5) motion to vacate.

²³ RP, pages 18-20, and as specified on page 20, such determination the trial court effectively acknowledged to be a first time determination of such by any Washington State court to date in the case.

²⁴ RP, pages 18- 19.

Motion for Reconsideration of its denial of his CR 60 (b) (5) motion

3. Court of Appeals Decision Below

OLLA then appealed²⁷ the subject Judgment at the COA2 (Appeal No. 43899-2-II) below, assigning error to such August 3, 2012 Judgment as based upon the trial court's determination²⁸ of subject matter jurisdiction over OLLA's action to have proceeded to adjudicate the Settlement Agreement, which was a substantive issue raised by the Complaint. OLLA's OAB argued the determination was in conflict with this Court's and the various Washington State appellate courts' line of decisions interpreting RCW 4.12.010²⁹ as legislatively shaping the superior courts' subject matter jurisdiction as constitutionally conferred under Const. art. IV, sec.6 and under which statute OLLA's action was outside the

²⁵ RP, page 19; ; see also, CP, pages 2384-2386, Order Denying Reconsideration as entered at the trial court on July 30, 2013 at CP, page 2385, footnotes 1 and 3.

²⁶ CP, pages 2384-2386, Order Denying Reconsideration.

²⁷ On September 4, 2012, OLLA filed the instant subject Appeal (No. 43899-2-II) from the subject August 3, 2012 Judgment and Order.

²⁸ RP, pages 18-20.

²⁹ OLLA'S OAB, page 20 thereof, stating such fact and OAB, at pages 34-39 thereof arguing that the lower court misapplied the jurisdictional limitations embodied in RCW 4.12.010.

general jurisdiction of the trial court.

On May 16, 2013, WAGNER filed its MOTMTA argument that under the test approved by this Court in *In re Marriage of Brown*³⁰ for evaluating the proper circumstances under which a court must eschew favoring finality of a judgment over its validity and grant vacation of a final judgment for lack of subject matter jurisdiction.

OLLA opposed WAGNER's MOTM³¹ arguing that even under the Restatement (SECOND) of Judgments 12 (1982) test adopted in *In Re Marriage Of Brown*, 98 Wn.2d 46, 653 P.2d 602 (1982) the trial court's nondiscretionary duty to vacate a judgment as void was not altered given that the first alternate standard of such test was met³² for granting OLLA's motion to vacate and refuting³³ the lower court's subject Ruling and determination as to its subject matter jurisdiction both having been made in blatant disregard of the

³⁰ The Restatement (SECOND) Judgments, Sec. 12 (1982) test at approved in *In re Marriage of Brown*, 98 Wn.2d 46 at 50 (1982).

³¹ On May 20, 2013 OLLA filed a response brief opposing WAGNER'S motion on the merits.

³² See page 15 of OLLA's response brief opposing WAGNER's motion on the merits.

³³ See pages 14-18 of OLLA's response brief opposing WAGNER's MOTMTA.

exclusive jurisdiction over OLLA'S claims possessed by the Los Angeles Superior Court of the State of California at which OLLA'S prior commenced action was pending legal fact to support its conclusions of law³⁴.

On July 31, 2013 OLLA filed a Motion for Additional Authorities³⁵ and on August 14, 2013 oral argument was conducted on WAGNER'S MOTMTA following which, on August 29, 2013, the COA2 Commissioner, Eric B. Schmidt, entered his Ruling³⁶ granting WAGNER'S MOTM to Affirm in specific agreement³⁷ with WAGNER'S MOTM's argument that under the test approved by this Court in *In re Marriage of Brown* for evaluating the circumstances under which a court must eschew favoring finality of a judgment

³⁴ OLLA'S opening appellate brief, p. 20,22, and re priority at this court for fair and orderly review meriting waiver of appellate rules necessary to serve ends of justice at p. 41;

³⁵ OLLA'S Motion for Additional Authorities, was granted by the COA2 Commissioner on August 29, 2013, and so was presumably reviewed before the Commissioner's Ruling of even date with the filing of such and included as an additional authority the cases of *Ralph v. State of Washington Department of Natural Resources*, *Mitchell v. Kitsap County*, 59 Wash. App. 177, 797 P.2d 516 (1990) and *Snyder v. Ingram*, 48 Wash. 2d 638, 296 P.2d 305 (1956).

³⁶ A true and correct copy of such Ruling is attached hereto as Appendix B.

³⁷ See pages 5-5 of the Commissioner's subject Ruling as entered August 29, 2013, a true and correct copy of which is attached hereto as Appendix B.

over its validity and grant vacation for lack of subject matter jurisdiction. The Commissioner's Ruling contends that neither of such test's three alternate standards were met because the trial court possessed subject matter jurisdiction over the parties' Settlement Agreement to have proceeded to conduct a fact finding trial on the enforceability of such and because the trial court was capable of determining its own jurisdiction whence judgment and hence that the trial court did not abuse its discretion in denying OLLA's CR 60 (b) (5) motion to vacate, res judicata thus barring OLLA's motion to vacate. However the Commissioner's determination does not address the trial court's own determination of its subject matter jurisdiction but also does not address the issue of whether the jurisdictional limits of RCW 4.12.010 applied to OLLA's action to have barred the trial court's jurisdiction thereover. The Commissioner's Ruling also reasoned that res judicata also barred OLLA's CR 60 (b) (5) collateral challenge to subject matter jurisdiction because a trial on the merits had been held at which the

issue of lack of such jurisdiction could have been raised at any time³⁸.

However, the Ruling neither addressed the jurisdictional arguments relating to the jurisdictional limitation on superior court subject matter jurisdiction provided by RCW 4.12.010, as recapitulated and reiterated by OLLA in his OAB and Response Brief opposing such MOTMTA.

On September 30, 2013, OLLA filed the subject MTM the Commissioner's Ruling arguing such as well as the fact that such Ruling did not indicate a review de novo had been made of the trial court's determination of subject matter jurisdiction on which denial of OLLA's subject CR 60 (b) (5) motion to vacate was based and without which the Commissioner could not have conscientiously determined as he did that the trial court had not abused its discretion by denying such motion to vacate and entering the subject Judgment. The Commissioner could not have concluded that entering the subject judgment and orders for which vacation was sought was not a manifest abuse of authority by the trial court,

³⁸ See Appendix B, Commissioner's Ruling as entered August 29, 2013 at page 3 thereof.

upon which to conclude that OLLA's Appeal and opening appellate brief ("OAB"), as had been filed over-length April 19, 2013 by the COA2 Clerk based upon April 19, 2013 Ruling granting such.

[On October 1, 2013, OLLA filed a Notice of Errata in his September 30, 2013 filed RAP 17.7 MTM, in correction of three inadvertently made typographical errors contained such MTM.]

On October 29, 2013 the COA2 panel of three judges unanimously denied OLLA's motion to modify ("MTM")³⁹.

OLLA contends the COA2 further erred thereby, and, hence, his Petition for Review hereby.

ARGUMENT IN FAVOR OF REVIEW BY THIS COURT

I.

THE COURT OF APPEALS DECISION BELOW SATISFIES THE REVIEW CRITERIA IN RAP 13.4 (b)

The considerations governing acceptance of this Petition for Review are as follows:

A petition for review will be accepted by the Supreme Court only if: (1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or

(2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with another decision of the Court of Appeals; or

(3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or

³⁹ Appendix A, COA2 Decision and Order Denying [OLLA's] Motion to Modify

(4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

RAP 13.4 (b). This Petition satisfies each of the considerations above.

This Petition involves a decision of the COA2 that is in conflict with other Washington State appellate decisions as well as decisions of this Court, and presents significant questions of federal and state constitutional law that involve issues of substantial public interest and the COA2 decision affirming the Commissioner's Ruling conflicts both with decisions of this Court and decisions of the various courts of appeal. Specifically, while OLLA asserts herein that the Commissioner's Ruling's application of and emphasis on the Restatement (SECOND) of Judgments Sec. 12 (1982) test approved by this Court in *In Re Marriage of Brown*⁴⁰ was both legally incorrect given that the limitations of RCW 4.12.010 on constitutionally authorized superior court subject matter jurisdiction⁴¹ indicate that the trial court so plainly lacked subject matter jurisdiction over his action that its determination otherwise

⁴⁰ *In re Marriage of Brown*, 98 Wn.2d 46, 50, 653 P.2d 602 (1982).

⁴¹ Wash. Const. Art. IV, sec. 6, a true and correct copy of which constitutional provision is attached hereto as Appendix C as Appendix C1.

constituted a manifest abuse of authority.

Additionally, the COA2's denial of OLLA's MTM also conflicts with this Court's prevailing case law interpreting the limitations set forth by the Legislature in RCW 4.12.010 as further defining the subject matter jurisdiction of the various Washington State superior courts as derived in Wash. State Const. Art. IV, sec. 6 as well as this Court's decisions requiring that an action seeking declaratory relief present justiciable claims in such regard.

OLLA's Petition thus raises issues of substantial public interest in that firstly, any party contemplating filing a post-judgment CR 60 (b) (5) motion to vacate to vacate a judgment as void for lack of subject matter, and secondly any party challenging the subject matter jurisdiction of a Washington State superior court over an action seeking, inter alia, the recovery of, possession of, determination of interests in and damages for injury to real property.

A. THE COA2 PANEL OF JUDGES ERRED BY AFFIRMING THE COMMISSIONER'S RULING WHICH HAD BEEN INCORRECT BECAUSE, PURSUANT TO RCW 4.12.010, THE TRIAL COURT LACKED SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION OVER OLLA'S ACTON AND THE TRIAL COURT CLEARLY ABUSED ITS DISCRETION BY DENYING OLLA'S CR 60 (b) (5) MOTION TO VACATE ITS JANUARY 15, 2010 JUDGMENT AND ORDERS WHOSE ENTRY CONSTITUTED AN ABUSE OF JUDICIAL AUTHORITY

- 1. In order to determine if OLLA's Appeal was clearly without merit pursuant to RAP 18.14 (e) (1), the COA2 had an obligation to review *de novo* the trial court's determination that it had possessed subject matter jurisdiction over OLLA's action, given such determination provided the basis upon which the trial court denied OLLA's CR 60 (b) (5) motion to vacate propriety.**

RAP 18.14 (e) (1) provides that:

"(1) Motion To Affirm. A motion on the merits to affirm will be granted in whole or in part if the appeal or any part thereof is determined to be clearly without merit. In making those determinations, the judge or commissioner will consider all relevant factors including whether the issues on review (a) are clearly controlled by settled law..."

The Commissioner's Ruling clearly indicates that no *de novo* review of the trial court's determination as to whether it possessed subject matter jurisdiction⁴² over OLLA's *action* was conducted as

⁴² Washington State appellate courts have a duty to conduct a review *de novo* of the trial court's decision to grant or deny a CR 60 (b) (5) motion to vacate a void judgment. *Dobbins v. Mendoza*, 88 Wn. App. 862, 871, 947 P.2d 1229 (1997) as involving questions

the COA2 was obliged to do⁴³, and failed to state, pursuant to RAP 18.14 (h)⁴⁴, supportive reasons for its resolution of the issue of whether or not the trial court had manifestly abused its judicial authority by proceeding to adjudicate the substantive issue of the enforceability of the parties' Settlement Agreement. Without having endeavored in such regard, the Commissioner had no basis on which to conclude that the trial court's denial of OLLA's CR 60 (b) (5) motion to vacate was not an abuse of discretion and therefore that that OLLA's Appeal had been filed clearly without merit and thus justifying his granting WAGNER its MOTMTA pursuant to RAP 18.14 (e) (1)⁴⁵.

A recent Washington State Court of Appeals, Division III opinion⁴⁶ provides the operative guidelines to which the Commissioner was bound by legal precedent in endeavoring to rule

of law, including whether the [trial] court had jurisdiction. "A trial court's decision as to subject matter jurisdiction is a question of law that is reviewed de novo." *Conom v. Snohomish County*, 155 Wn.2d 154,157, 118 P.3d 344 (2005)

⁴³ See *Crosby v. Spokane County*, 137 Wn.2d 296, 301, 971 P.2d (1999) (Whether a particular court has jurisdiction is a question of law reviewed de novo.); see also, *Spokane Airports v. RMA, Inc.*, 149 Wn. App. 930, par. 25, 206 P.3d 364, 369 (2009).

⁴⁴ A true and correct copy of RAP 18.14 (h) is attached hereto as included in Appendix C8.

⁴⁵ A true and correct copy of RAP 18.14 (e) (1) is attached hereto as included in Appendix C8.

⁴⁶ *Newlon v. Alexander*, 167 Wn. App. 195, 272 P.3d 903 (2012).

on WAGNER's MOTMTA under the circumstances of OLLA's

appeal from a denial of a motion to vacate:

"Motions to vacate 'are addressed to the sound discretion of the trial court, whose judgment will not be disturbed absent a showing of a manifest abuse of discretion.' *In re Marriage of Burkey*, 36 Wn. App. 487, 489, 675 P.2d 619 (1984). Discretion is abused where it is exercised on untenable grounds or for untenable reasons. *In re Schuoler*, 106 Wn.2d 500, 512, 723 P.2d 1103 (1986). We however review questions of law, including whether the court had jurisdiction, de novo. *In re Marriage of Kastanas*, 78 Wn. App. 193, 197, 896 P.2d 726 (1995)."

Newlon v. Alexander, 167 Wn. App. 195, 272 P.3d 903 (2012). See

also, *M.A. Mortenson Co., Inc. v. Timberline Software Corp.*, 93 Wn.

App. 819, 970 P.2d 80 (1999), *aff'd*, 140 Wn.2d 568, 998 P.2d 305

2005). "A court acts on untenable grounds when its factual findings

are not supported by the record; it acts for untenable reasons if it

uses an incorrect standard of law or the facts do not meet the

requirements of the standard of law. *State v. Renquist*, 79 Wn. App.

786, 793, 905 P.2d 922 (1995), review denied, 129 Wn.2d 1003

(1996)⁴⁷ But a court has a mandatory nondiscretionary duty to

vacate a void judgment. *Allstate Ins. Co. v. Khani*, 75 Wn. App. 317,

323, 877 P.2d 324 (1994).

⁴⁷ See also, *In re Knutson*, 114 Wn. App. 866 at 871, 60 P.3d 681 (2003).

Washington State Superior Court Civil Rule (CR) 60 (b) provides:

“ . . . (b) . . . Fraud, etc. On motion and upon such terms as are just, the court may relieve a party . . . from a final judgment, order or proceeding for the following reasons: . . . (5) The judgment is void.”

CR 60 (b) (5).

The Commissioner was faced thus with a duty to determine if the judgment for which vacation was sought at the trial court was void⁴⁸. If the judgment was void, then the trial court’s refusal to vacate that void order is abuse of discretion. Washington State courts all recognize the rule that a judgment entered by a court lacking personal or subject matter jurisdiction is to be held void⁴⁹. Moreover, a court enters a void order only when it lacks personal jurisdiction or subject matter jurisdiction over a claim.

Marley v. Dep’t of Labor & Indus., 125 Wn.2d 533, 540, 886 P.2d

⁴⁸ See also, *Mitchell v. Kitsap County*, 59 Wash. App. 177, 797 P.2d 516 (1990), a decision by the COA2 citing to *Allied Fid. Ins. Co. v. Ruth*, 57 Wn. App. 783,790, 790 P.2d 206 (1990) (“ . . . when the trial court is faced with a void judgment, it has no discretion and the judgment must be vacated whenever the lack of jurisdiction comes to light. We must, therefore, determine whether the judgment entered. . . is void.”); see also, *Mueller v. Miller*, 82 Wn. App. 236,251, 917 P.2d 604 (1996)

⁴⁹ See also, *Lubben v. Selective Service System Local Bd. No. 27*, 453 F.2d 645 (1st Cir. 1972) [“A court must vacate any judgment entered in excess of its jurisdiction.”]; see also, *Summers v. Superior Court* (1959) [“A judgment is void on its face if the trial court exceeded its jurisdiction by granting relief that it had no power to grant. Jurisdiction cannot be conferred on a trial court by the consent of the parties.”]

189 (1994).

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