I. SUMMARY 

Prose appellant MARK OLLA's ("Olla's'') petition for 

discretionary review is just the latest episode of his ongoing vexatious 

litigation campaign again the respondent, Mr. Robert Wagner (''Wagner''). 

This is Olla's second petition for review following three appeals and two 

trials, which have all resulted in adverse decisions against Olla relating to 

the same litigation. 

This Court should deny Olla petition for review for the same 

reasons it denied Olla's first petition for discretionary review. 1 Olla's 

petition does not identify any conflicts between the decision of the court of 

appeals and the decisions of other courts of appeal or this Court. Olla 's

III. ARGUMENT 

A. Olla's Petition Does Not IdentifY Any Genuine Conflicts between 
the Court of Appeals or this Court 

As this Court is aware. RAP 13.4(b) provides that this Court can 

only accept discretionary review if one of four criteria are met. Two of 

these criteria are whether court of appeals decision conflicts with another 

court of appeals or with Supreme Court precedent. Although Olla asserts 

there are conflicts, in reality his petition does not identify any genuine 

conflicts. 

Olla's entire petition is, for the most part, incomprehensible. He 

advances only one remotely coherent argument asserting a conflict 

between the court of appeals decision and other precedent, as follows: 

In re Marriage of Brown has bred the illusion, which must be 

21 In reMarriage of Brown, 98 Wn.2d 46,653 P.2d 602 (1982). 

22 lit. at 4. 

23 Olla v. Wagner, No. 43899-2-11, Order Denying Motion to Modify, filed October 29, 
2013. 
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dispelled by this court, that a judgment entered without subject 
matter jurisdiction can only be vacated upon a showing that the 
rendering court so plainly lacked subject matter jurisdiction over 
the action that its entry of judgment amounted to a manifest abuse 
of authority without regard to this the considerable case law 
confirming a court's nondiscretionary duty to vacate a judgment as 
void and that a judgment is void if rendered without subject matter 
jurisdiction over the action.24 

When read in conjunction with pages 40 through 41 of his petition for 

review, and with the case law cited on page 20, Olla appears to argue that 

In reMarriage of Brown conflicts with the general principle articulated in 

Allstate Ins. Co. v. Khani, 75 Wash. App. 317, 323, 877 P.2d 724, 727 

( 1994) as follows: ··a court has a nondiscretionary duty to vacate a void 

judgment." But Olla stretches this principle too far. Khani simply put to 

rest the questions of whether it makes any difference how long a party 

waited before attempting to vacate a void judgment, and whether a trial 

court has the inherent discretion not to vacate a void judgment. (The 

answer is '·no'' to both questions.) Jd. at 324, 877 P.2d at 728; see also. 

Brickum lnv. Co. v. Vemham Corp., 46 Wash. App. 517, 520, 731 P.2d 

533, 535 (1987). 

In contrast, Brown merely establishes reasonable requirements on 

litigants who choose to collaterally attack judgments on the basis of 

subject matter jurisdiction in subsequent motions to vacate. In this 

24 Petition for review at 28-29. 
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specific context, litigants must demonstrate at least one of the following: 

( 1) The subject matter of the action was so plainly beyond the 
court's jurisdiction that its entertaining the action was a manifest 
abuse of authority: or 

(2) Allowing the judgment to stand would substantially infringe the 
authority of another tribunal or agency of government; or 

(3) The judgment was rendered by a court lacking capability to 
make an adequately informed determination of a question 
concerning its own jurisdiction and as a matter of procedural 
fairness the party seeking to avoid the judgment should have 
opportunity belatedly to attack the court's subject matter 
jurisdiction.25 

Brown at 50, 653 P.2d 603-04. There is no question that if a litigant 

demonstrates any of these three factors, a trial court is required vacate a 

judgment rendered without subject matter jurisdiction. Hence, there is no 

actual conflict between Brown and Khani. 

Olla's petition does not articulate any other potential conflicts with 

any coherence. Since Olla has failed to establish genuine conflicts within 

the courts of appeal or this Court, Olla has failed to satisfy the first two 

mandatory criteria of RAP 13 .4(b ). As demonstrated below, he has also 

failed to satisfy the remaining two criteria. 

B. Olla's Petition Presents No Significant Question of Constitutional 
Law 

Olla also does not present a significant question of constitutional 

25 ld. at 50, 653 P.2d at 604. 
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law pursuant to RAP 13.4(b)(3). Within the body ofhis argument, Olla 

only mentions article IV, section 6 of Washington's Constitution, and only 

for the purpose of establishing that this provision provides the basis for the 

jurisdictional limits described in RCW 4.12.010.26 Simply scattering a 

few constitutional references into a petition for review does not raise a 

genuinely significant question of constitutional law. In fact, Olla does not 

present any articulate argument which this Court should explore the scope 

of constitutional jurisdiction granted to trial courts. Further, Olla failed to 

raise a constitutional issue before the trial courtY 

C. Olla ·s Petition for Review Presents No Issue of Substantial Public 
Interest 

The last opportunity for Olla to establish a basis for this Court's 

review is RAP 13.4(b)(4), which allows for discretionary review ifthe 

petition involves an issue of substantial public interest. But Olla fails this 

last test also. Nowhere in Olla 's petition does he identify any issue of 

substantial public interest. 

An issue of "substantial public interest" is not easily defined, but it 

is clear this Court rarely decides to review a lower court decision on this 

basis. For example, this Court found a substantial public interest when the 

26 See petition for review at 16, 38. 

27 Olla presented no constitutional issue in his motion to vacate the judgment (CP 
1771-98), his reply brief (CP 2351-60), and his motion for reconsideration (CP 2372-81 ). 
Olla only made two references to Article IV, section 6 of Washington's Constitution, and 
one irrelevant reference to the federal Constitution. CP 1782, 1886 and 2355. 
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lower court's decision had "the potential to affect every sentencing 

proceeding in Pierce County after November 26, 2001 where a DOSA 

sentence was or is at issue." State v. Watson, 155 Wn.2d 574, 577, 122 P. 

3d 903, 904 (2005). See also. In re Marriage of Ortiz, 108 Wn.2d 643, 

740 P.2d 843 ( 1987). But this case presents no similar substantial public 

interest issues. This case deals only with a lawsuit brought by one 

disgruntled pro se litigant who is determined on advancing his consistently 

discredited jurisdictional arguments to every court possible, regardless of 

how many sanctions he incurs along the way. The issues raised simply do 

not rise to the level that Supreme Court determination is necessary or 

proper. 

For these reasons, this Court should deny Olla's petition for review 

because he has failed to establish any of the four factors in RAP 13 .4(b ). 

D. Wagner Should be Entitled to an Award of Attorney's Fees and 
Costs 

Pursuant to RAP 18.1 U), Wagner requests an award of attorney's 

fees and costs incurred in the preparation and filing of his response to 

Olla's petition for review. There are two reasons why Wagner is entitled 

to attorney's fees and expenses incurred in this appeal pursuant to RAP 

18.1. First, the parties· settlement agreement states that ''[i]f legal action is 

required to enforce the provisions of this agreement, the prevailing party is 

-10-



entitled to recover its attorneys' fees and costs from the nonprevailing [sic] 

party." CP 253. Second, attorney's fees and costs are allowed pursuant to 

CR 11 and RCW 4.84.185 because Olla's claims are clearly without merit 

and frivolous in nature, as reasonably determined by the trial court and the 

court of appeals multiple times. 

IV. CONCLUSION 

For the reasons explained above, Wagner respectfully requests that 

this Court deny Olla's petition for discretionary review, and award his 

attorney's fees and costs incurred in this appeal.